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Section 961.1 of Title 13 of the Louisiana

Revised Statute of 1950, as amended,

reported at the Hilton Houston Hobby

Airport, 8181 Airport Boulevard, Houston,
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1            P R O C E E D I N G S

2      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

3           We were on Board questions.

4 Captain Higgins, I think you had a couple of

5 questions.

6 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

7      Q.   Good afternoon, sir.

8      A.   Good afternoon.

9      Q.   We invite your attention to Tab 5

10 of the materials and this is the testimony

11 of Captain Kuchta.

12           Sir, you had the opportunity

13 earlier to be familiar with that testimony.

14 If you have any questions on it, please take

15 more time.  However, I would like to ask

16 you, do these questions and answers

17 demonstrate the level of knowledge you would

18 expect of a master on board one of your

19 vessels?

20      MR. JOHNSON:

21           I'm going to object, but I'll ask

22 you --

23      MR. SCHONEKAS:

24           I'm going to object, and the

25 reason being is that Captain Kuchta
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1 testified that he was under a lot of stress

2 and was having a lack of ability to

3 recollect at that time.

4      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

5           You mean during the testimony.

6      MR. SCHONEKAS:

7           During the hearings, that's

8 correct, Judge.

9      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

10           The witness can only speak to what

11 he sees.

12      CAPT. HIGGINS:

13           And the question is to whether or

14 not those would be his -- meet his

15 expectations as an ISM expert and manager.

16      MR. SCHONEKAS:

17           Based solely on that testimony.

18      MR. JOHNSON:

19           And I'm going to object that it

20 calls for speculation, Captain.  You are

21 asking him to make a determination based on

22 testimony that a gentleman made here before

23 this Board back on May 26 through 29 of this

24 year without taking into any consideration

25 the trauma that he experienced in exiting
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1 that rig on April 20.

2 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

3      Q.   If those same questions were asked

4 to one of your captains, would those be the

5 types of answers that you would expect from

6 a master of a DPV vessel?

7      MR. SCHONEKAS:

8           Same objection.

9      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

10           I'm going to overrule the

11 objection if you have an opinion based on

12 what you see.  And we all know that that's

13 incomplete and there may be special

14 circumstances that would affect your opinion

15 or maybe make you feel you can't express an

16 opinion.  But we have to try to figure out

17 what your expectations are in your

18 managerial role.

19      THE WITNESS:

20           I recognize what stress he must

21 have been under after having gone through

22 what he went through and maybe even more

23 pointedly, what he would have been going

24 through when trying to answer these

25 questions.  I find it difficult answering
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1 questions that doesn't make me feel like

2 they are being tee'd up to launch some

3 perception of something that is something

4 that I don't believe in so I feel like I

5 have to qualify everything I say.

6           I think these questions asked of

7 any manager in my role -- I mean, the

8 assessment of these questions anybody asked

9 of anybody in my role, I would think I would

10 want my guy to have impeccably clear,

11 insightful, reasoned knowledge of the system

12 and be able to articulate it at a moment's

13 notice.

14           So although I don't like the

15 answers, I can't say that this is

16 representative of what I think our masters

17 would be able to convey in a normal

18 conversation about the subject matter.

19 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

20      Q.   Do you agree, sir, that they don't

21 demonstrate their own knowledge of the

22 system?

23      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

24           You mean the answers.

25 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:
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1      Q.   That the answers don't demonstrate

2 knowledge of the system?

3      MR. SCHONEKAS:

4           Relevancy.

5      THE WITNESS:

6           They demonstrate to me that the

7 guy was under stress.  I can't imagine he

8 could become a captain, not on a whim or

9 without some innate ability.  So I'm

10 challenged to agree that they suggest that

11 he didn't have knowledge of the system.  We

12 wouldn't allow him to be in his position if

13 it was recognized that he didn't have

14 knowledge of the system.  So to answer your

15 question, I have a hard time getting to the

16 point that he was ill qualified on two pages

17 of text.

18 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

19      Q.   So you don't believe that this

20 accurately represents his knowledge of the

21 ISM system; is that correct?

22      A.   That's what I think.  I don't

23 think it represents accurately his knowledge

24 of the Safety Management System.

25      Q.   Sir, what company would have been
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1 responsible for the ISM system and

2 compliance with regard to the DEEPWATER

3 HORIZON?

4      A.   What company?

5      Q.   Yes, sir.

6      A.   Transocean.

7      Q.   Does anyone or any other company

8 bear responsibility for maintaining that

9 system?

10      A.   Compliance with the ISM code?

11      Q.   Yes, sir.

12      A.   No.  No other company bears any

13 responsibility.

14      Q.   So all of the ISM responsibilities

15 reside with Transocean; is that correct?

16      A.   Yes, sir.

17      CAPT. HIGGINS:

18           Thank you.

19 EXAMINATION BY LCDR. BUTTS:

20      Q.   Good afternoon, sir.

21      A.   Good afternoon.

22      Q.   Just to kind of reflect back, and

23 I don't know if I missed it, but do you

24 manage any of the rigs in the Gulf of Mexico

25 directly?  Are there supervisors in between



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 10

1 you and the actual crew of the rigs?

2      A.   No, I don't manage any of the

3 rigs.

4      Q.   Okay.

5      A.   There are supervisors.  There are

6 rig managers that manage the function of the

7 rig.  If I could categorize what I do, I

8 administer the Safety Management System.

9      Q.   And the Safety Management System,

10 what manuals make up Transocean's Safety

11 Management System?  And if I could help you

12 along, would you consider the HSSE manual a

13 part of the Safety Management System?

14      A.   Certainly.  In fact, in that

15 manual we quote the ISM code.

16      Q.   And what about the operations

17 manual; is the operations manual a part of

18 the Transocean Safety Management System?

19      A.   I think to say that it's part of

20 the Safety Management System is a bit of

21 a -- a bit of a stretch on reality.  I think

22 the operations manual is a tool on how to

23 run the machine, the drilling machine, sort

24 of coupled with the floating vessel that

25 it's on.  So it's much more in a
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1 technical -- not that it ignores regulatory

2 and statutory issues.  It is more aligned

3 for telling a guy what he needs to do to

4 circulate mud and where the piping runs lie

5 and any innate technical knowledge of the

6 vessel.

7      Q.   And so you would agree with me

8 that learning for a seafarer like the

9 captain, like any industrial person that's

10 on board these rigs, the operations manual

11 is critical information to them to do their

12 job on board the rig?

13      A.   I do.  I agree with you that he

14 needs to be able to make reference to the

15 operations manual.

16      Q.   And likewise, the manual has to be

17 thorough enough and complete enough for the

18 seafarer, the industrial person, the

19 captain, the chief engineer to do their job?

20      A.   Yes, that's right.

21      Q.   So following on, would you

22 consider the emergency response manual part

23 of the Transocean Safety Management System?

24      A.   I would.

25      Q.   Okay.  Because, and not to put



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 12

1 words in your mouth, but it does describe in

2 detail what certain crewmembers are required

3 to do in an emergency situation?

4      A.   That's correct.

5      Q.   What about the vessel

6 life-saving -- excuse me -- life-saving

7 appliance training manual?  Is that part of

8 the Transocean Safety Management System?

9      A.   I would suggest that it is.

10      Q.   Vessels response plan?

11      A.   Again, part of the management

12 system.

13      Q.   Thank you.  Well control manual?

14      A.   Part of the company management

15 system.

16      Q.   And the last example I put here,

17 marine compliance manual, I think you just

18 mentioned that a few minutes ago and I don't

19 know what that is, so I would like to ask

20 you if you can kind of elaborate on that.

21 Because I think the key term you threw out

22 at me was training, educational manuals, and

23 it's specific to different types of vessels

24 that Transocean owns, the jackups, the

25 dynamic positions, the drillships.  Could
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1 you elaborate on that just a little bit and

2 does it -- I know this is very compound,

3 excuse me.  Does it enhance the operations

4 manual or is it something specific to crew

5 training?

6      A.   It's general tenets that we

7 embrace on the different functions and

8 technical execution of being a drilling

9 company.

10      Q.   Okay.

11      A.   And we have that spectrum of rig

12 design.  And when the company was smaller we

13 had one manual called the field operations

14 manual and it specifically addresses

15 operations and how to execute operations

16 professionally, properly, efficiently to

17 provide -- try and provide a product for our

18 customers.

19           We came to the point where that no

20 longer served us well, so the decision was

21 made, and this decision was made well above

22 my pay grade and certainly before I was

23 aware that it had been made.  But the

24 decision was made to take that field

25 operations manual and turn it into a more
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1 focused group of manuals so the person on

2 the jackup working in southeast Asia can go

3 to a document that focuses on his needs

4 specifically as opposed to going to a grand

5 document that has everybody's needs in it.

6 And we ended up with those four manuals I

7 spoke of earlier.

8           The top one that addresses

9 everybody's requirements is the marine

10 compliance procedures manual.  How do all

11 our floating vessels comply with our marine

12 procedures.

13           The next one is more of an

14 operational focus on how to get our jobs

15 done with a different class of drilling

16 vessels and that was the DP -- deepwater

17 floating vessels, the mid water and harsh

18 environment semisubmersible type, rigs not

19 self-propelled moored, and then the final

20 one is the jackup drilling rig.

21      Q.   So those manuals don't necessarily

22 replace any of the ones that we listed

23 before; those more or less enhance and

24 streamline down to the specific unit that

25 these individuals are working for?
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1      A.   They do replace the field

2 operations manual.

3      Q.   Got you.

4      A.   Yes, sir.

5      Q.   Now, knowing of these few volumes

6 of safety management documentation, is there

7 any process in place for any of the

8 seafarers or industrial crew on board the

9 MODUs to be trained to understand and know

10 what is in all those manuals?  Because we

11 have had testimony that there is quite a few

12 documents out there, manuals.  Is there

13 something that specifically trains them to

14 understand and know of those processes and

15 procedures?

16      A.   There is a great deal of training.

17 Most of it is computer based OJT.

18      Q.   And I want to interrupt you there.

19 Now, that's talking about performing a

20 certain function like operating the davit?

21      A.   Right.

22      Q.   I'm talking about understanding

23 this complex Safety Management System and

24 how they are an integral part in

25 implementing it, something of that nature.
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1      A.   There is training done on board

2 the rig that teaches the company management

3 system.  And that is everybody is trained at

4 the level at which they function and

5 operate.  So our newest employee doesn't

6 need to know what the grand scheme is, but

7 he certainly has to know what the station

8 bill looks like.

9      Q.   Sure.

10      A.   He is not on board the rig more

11 than 15 minutes before he knows this is the

12 station bill and this is your role in an

13 emergency evacuation or plan, right?

14           So he gets that and he stays with

15 us for some period of time and his comfort

16 level improves and he is no longer the new

17 employee and he is exposed to more things

18 and he appreciates more and he is taught

19 more of the company management system.

20           Elements within the company

21 management system are built up with all

22 nature of functions, where you have a manual

23 for financial planning.  We have a supply

24 chain manual.  These are things that they

25 don't have to worry about.  But the things
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1 that they do have to worry about are

2 emergency response manuals, more than any

3 others, the HNS manual.  And that is -- they

4 have a pretour meeting before going on tour

5 every day.  One element or one policy of the

6 health and safety manual is discussed prior

7 to every 12-hour shift to help build that

8 knowledge of our system.  And that's how we

9 do it, through continued relentless

10 exposure.

11      Q.   On-the-job training?

12      A.   On-the-job training.

13      Q.   To the HORIZON, three areas:

14 Engines, dampers and drill floor.  The

15 engines specifically.  And I guess I should

16 back up even from that just a little bit.

17 The RMS system, I understand it was carried

18 over from GSF.  At your level of management,

19 are you aware than the crew, specifically

20 the chief engineer and the chief electronics

21 technician, were having difficulty using the

22 system?

23      A.   Having difficulty using the RMS

24 system?

25      Q.   Yes, sir, specifically.  And I
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1 will give you some background information.

2 And I understand that the corporation looked

3 at fusing two processes together.  I

4 completely understand that.  I understand we

5 are going to look at a management of change

6 document some other time.

7           At the rig level, were you aware

8 of some of the difficulties that the crew

9 was actually having using that new database?

10      A.   That had never been brought to my

11 attention.

12      Q.   And that is an issue in the safety

13 manual that I believe, because the users are

14 having difficulty.  And what I would like to

15 point to you as the chief engineer, I'm not

16 quoting specifically, but he had mentioned

17 many, many duplicates -- duplicates of tasks

18 that would routinely come up.  In other

19 words, it would come up one day, come up

20 another, come up another, so there is an

21 issue there.

22           The chief electronics technician,

23 Mr. Williams, his word was:  This system is

24 overwhelming, so these are two senior

25 members on board the rig that are directly
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1 responsible for implementing and maintaining

2 your rig's condition and their -- and I'm

3 not going to try and categorize -- I guess

4 their feelings, but to me from their

5 testimony it seemed like they didn't -- or

6 they weren't necessarily best prepared to do

7 their jobs.  That's my opinion.

8           The engines.

9      LCDR. BUTTS:

10           I'm getting there.  Thank you,

11 very much, Captain.  That's why he is the

12 captain and I'm not.

13 EXAMINATION BY LCDR. BUTTS:

14      Q.   The engines, are you aware that

15 the engines -- Wartsila actually came out to

16 do an overhaul on one of the main diesel

17 engines?  Were you aware of that?  I'm sorry

18 I don't have a date.

19      A.   No.  I understand.  I am aware

20 that every time we overhaul the main power

21 plant the manufacturer comes on board on all

22 of them.

23      Q.   To be fair to you, I didn't bring

24 the Wartsila documents but in the -- and

25 I'll offer -- in one of the Wartsila
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1 documents it mentioned that the specialized

2 tools that are maintained on the rig were

3 rusted and could not be used.  They went on

4 to say that their job had to be delayed

5 because there were no parts on board.

6           So knowing just those two things,

7 is that something that would cause concern

8 within the Safety Management System of

9 knowing there is maintenance coming up, they

10 truly got someone out there, but they didn't

11 necessarily have the parts necessary to do

12 it?  Would you consider that small little

13 scenario there as an issue within the SMS?

14      A.   No.

15      MR. JOHNSON:

16           Lieutenant, I have an objection.

17 You are asking him to assume those as a

18 hypothetical?

19      LCDR. BUTTS:

20           No, sir.  They are a fact and I

21 have read it.

22      MR. JOHNSON:

23           I would object that it asks him to

24 assume facts that aren't in evidence or

25 facts that haven't been brought to his
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1 attention unless you lay a proper

2 foundation.

3      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

4           I think -- you don't have to

5 embrace these things as true.  The

6 Lieutenant is not going to -- I think, you

7 know, he wants to consolidate this and get

8 to the point to see how you would evaluate

9 this kind of information in your position.

10 So if you could bear with us and assume just

11 for the sake of answering the question what

12 your evaluation would be were it true, I

13 would be surprised if it weren't true, but

14 you don't need to embrace that as being

15 true.

16           So with that qualification we are

17 interested in how someone at your level

18 would deal with this information and

19 ultimately perhaps how it could be done

20 better if you think it could be done better.

21      MR. JOHNSON:

22           Thank you, Judge.  That is my

23 concern.

24      THE WITNESS:

25           It is not -- I don't think it's
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1 part of the Safety Management System.  It's

2 part of our maintenance and asset management

3 system.  There is an asset rig manager over

4 that asset.  It's his responsibility.  All

5 of the things you have discussed here are

6 directly on his shoulders to keep going.

7 Certainly it's not a shining moment the way

8 you have described it, but the requirement

9 really is to have the engine overhauled.

10 And they without question will have gotten

11 that done.

12           There were probably a few

13 accountability phone calls prior to getting

14 it done as a result of the deficiencies you

15 have highlighted, but I can't make the

16 stretch or the leap or the jump that that's

17 really hugely impactful on our safety

18 condition, or it would be -- it should be

19 managed by our Safety Management System.  It

20 really should be managed by astute asset rig

21 managers and the technical staff that take

22 care of the machine itself.

23 EXAMINATION BY LCDR. BUTTS:

24      Q.   If you do know, the RMS system

25 which you refer to as a carryover, the fire
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1 dampers in the engine room?

2      MR. JOHNSON:

3           Excuse me.  Could I have just a

4 moment?

5      LCDR. BUTTS:

6           Of course.

7      MR. JOHNSON:

8           Thank you.  I'm sorry.

9      LCDR. BUTTS:

10           No worries.

11 EXAMINATION BY LCDR. BUTTS:

12      Q.   The fire dampers for the engine

13 room required a maintenance of them and it

14 was RPM 14 days.  What does that mean?

15      A.   Routine preventive maintenance, I

16 believe.

17      Q.   And does the 14 days indicate --

18 and I don't know this.  Does the 14 days

19 indicate the occurrence of it?

20      A.   It sounds like an every-two-weeks

21 job.

22      Q.   The drill floor, and again at your

23 level, were you aware, and I guess you have

24 explained this, that the awareness may not

25 have been at your level because it would
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1 have gone to the asset manager, that the

2 driller's chair, the console was -- I think

3 the term was the screen would lock.  Were

4 you aware that the driller in the drilling

5 shack was having difficulties or problems

6 with the operation of the driller's console

7 in the chair?

8      A.   No, sir.

9      Q.   Were you aware that, also on the

10 drill floor, there was an issue with the

11 purge system for the BOP and that there were

12 parts on order for that system?  Were you

13 aware of any of those issues?

14      A.   No.

15      Q.   For the loss of propulsion, the

16 DEEPWATER HORIZON in August of 2008, it's

17 been said and discussed with the captain

18 that there is no one that was hurt.

19 However, there obviously was a machinery

20 failure.  The rig went dark as we read in

21 the accident report.

22           Would it cause any concern of

23 anyone within the Safety Management System

24 or yourself that one of the other engines

25 didn't pick up the load?
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1      A.   Well, it's of huge concern.  There

2 is a different branch, in that we have a DP

3 event report, and the people that know how

4 to fix that problem are on it immediately

5 and it goes to the highest levels of the

6 company that one of our DP vessels blacked

7 out.  It's an alarming and very concerning

8 event.

9           But as the administrator of the

10 Safety Management System, it's only for my

11 knowledge when I get told that.  The people

12 who understand it and react to it and get it

13 investigated and fixed are not in my group.

14 I don't manage people that know how to do

15 that.  So it's just a for your knowledge

16 when I find out about it.  And I certainly

17 do generally find out about it, but I'm not

18 the first guy they go to.

19      Q.   Yes, sir, I understand.  And if

20 the result of that accident report went back

21 down and said that the governor, Woodward

22 governor failed because of maintenance, it

23 was overdue, that would point back to the

24 Safety Management System and that the crew

25 perhaps wasn't maintaining the governor?
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1      A.   No.  It would point to the asset

2 management group.

3      Q.   Sure.

4      A.   Not the Safety Management System.

5 I mean, we say that we will maintain our

6 equipment in good running order.  To

7 actually -- and after that policy we have a

8 maintenance group and an asset management

9 manager, rig manager, who manages the

10 machinery and the maintenance and care and

11 how we fund all that -- all those exercises.

12      Q.   And I won't belabor the issue any

13 longer.  It seems to me that that might have

14 been a good opportunity, commentary here, to

15 look at why the other five engines didn't

16 pick up the load when the actual engine

17 dropped.

18      A.   I suspect they know the answer to

19 that question as a result of efforts made.

20      LCDR. BUTTS:

21           Thank you very much.

22 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

23      Q.   Sir, are you aware of Section 10

24 of the ISM code?

25      A.   Yes, sir.



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 27

1      Q.   And where specifically maintenance

2 of equipment is part and required by the ISM

3 code?

4      A.   Yes.

5      CAPT. HIGGINS:

6           Thank you.

7      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

8           Any other questions for

9 Mr. Canducci?

10           Jason?

11 EXAMINATION BY MR. MATHEWS:

12      Q.   Mr. Canducci, I just have a few

13 questions.  And I am going to preface this

14 by I have never read the ISM document, so

15 please correct me if I'm wrong on any of

16 this.

17           Earlier we had some questions

18 about, that was given to you, about the

19 training of personnel and what you expect of

20 the employees that you have within

21 Transocean.  Is there anything within the

22 ISM document itself that required you to

23 train personnel in accordance with the ISM

24 document?

25      A.   I can't remember the language
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1 specifically.

2      Q.   But there is some type of section

3 in there that does require you --

4      A.   I'm sure there is a training

5 requirement.  We have to train them in the

6 code at a minimum, but I'm not quite sure

7 that it goes beyond that.

8      Q.   There is nothing like defining

9 what it must do in years, every X amount of

10 years you must train?

11      A.   I don't recall language like that.

12      Q.   I have a document in front of you

13 and if you could please look at.  It's Bates

14 stamped TRN-USCG_MMS-0042585.  Do you have

15 that document in front of you, sir?

16      A.   I do.

17      Q.   What is that, sir?

18      A.   A document of compliance from the

19 Marshall Islands.

20      Q.   And when was that issued to

21 Transocean?

22      A.   Issued from Norway on April 25th,

23 2006.

24      Q.   When does this document expire,

25 sir?  Or when is it valid to?  Excuse me.
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1      A.   There it is right there.  It's

2 valid until 25th of January, 2012.

3      Q.   Just so I'm understanding what

4 actually this certificate says, is it

5 accurate that this certificate is to certify

6 that the Safety Management System of the

7 company has been audited and that it

8 complies with the requirements of the

9 International Management Code for Safe

10 Operations of Ships and for Pollution

11 Prevention ISM code for the types of ships

12 listed below?

13      A.   That is accurate.

14      Q.   And what day did the DEEPWATER

15 HORIZON incident occur?

16      A.   April 20, 2010.

17      Q.   Can you please turn to the second

18 page, please?  And I believe there is some

19 different types of annual verifications and

20 the first one which occurred in 2008.  The

21 second one followed up in 2009.  And then

22 there was a third one.  What is the date of

23 that third annual verification?

24      A.   April 21, 2010.

25      Q.   Who was this issued by, this
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1 certificate?

2      A.   DNV.

3      Q.   So DNV actually showed up at

4 Transocean's offices on the day after the

5 incident, reviewed all of your ISM documents

6 and they didn't find any major -- I don't

7 know, correct me if I'm wrong with the

8 verbiage here, the nonconformities, major

9 nonconformities?  They went through all your

10 ISM documents and reissued you a certificate

11 on April 21, 2010?

12      A.   Yes, sir.

13      Q.   My next question, and I don't

14 think there was any foundation established

15 on your role in QHSE.  Could you please

16 elaborate as what your role is in that

17 department?

18      A.   I administer the Safety Management

19 System.  To do that, I provide guidance, I

20 provide people to the rigs, provide guidance

21 to the people on the rigs.  We send people

22 to help out as a resource on instituting the

23 Safety Management System and executing the

24 management system on board.  We audit the

25 rigs, my group does.  We have medical
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1 services under my auspices.

2      Q.   A direct question I had to your

3 responsibilities.  Are you ever consulted on

4 any type of stuff associated with the rig

5 that may cause any potential safety issues

6 to your personnel on the rig and/or the

7 potential issues of pollution events to the

8 environment?

9      A.   I'm sorry.  Could you repeat that?

10      Q.   If they ever come across an

11 incident on the rig that may be a potential

12 issue where the safety of the personnel on

13 the rig or potential of pollution issues

14 occurs, are you consulted if there is a

15 finding that they have equipment out there

16 that may be defined as hazardous?

17      A.   Every incident that relates to

18 personal injury or loss of containment comes

19 to my attention.

20      Q.   I would like to introduce the next

21 document to you.  It's right in front of you

22 sir.  And it says "confidential" across it

23 and the Bates stamp number on this document,

24 I believe, begins with TRN-USCG_MMS-0041066.

25 Do you have that document in front of you,
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1 sir?

2      A.   I do, sir.

3      Q.   This is a rig audit from

4 Transocean and it defines equipment

5 definitions.

6      MR. KALLAM:

7           I don't want to interrupt.  I was

8 waiting for you to finish your question.

9      MR. MATHEWS:

10           I was going to ask him if that's

11 what was in front of him was the document.

12      MR. KALLAM:

13           I would enter an objection to this

14 line of questioning.  This document that's

15 been identified, it is indeed on Transocean

16 letterhead, but there has not been any

17 determination as to who prepared the

18 document nor where the contents of the

19 document emanated from, whether it was

20 related to a third party audit or otherwise.

21 And I believe this witness' testimony is

22 clear that he has no information concerning

23 a maintenance department document

24 especially, notwithstanding the fact that we

25 don't know its origin, author or contents.
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1      MR. MATHEWS:

2           I understand.  I will probably get

3 into that -- I'll go into that.

4      MR. KALLAM:

5           Appreciate it.  I just want the

6 objection for the record.

7 EXAMINATION BY MR. MATHEWS:

8      Q.   No problem.  This just comes from

9 an audit and it's dated on the second page

10 and it was performed by ModuSpec for

11 Transocean.  And date of it, I believe

12 was -- DEEPWATER HORIZON assessment of

13 April 1 through 12, 2010.  And this was a

14 rig assessment definition that was provided

15 and it was then just signed off on by

16 personnel within Transocean prior to

17 ModuSpec leaving the rig.

18           Now, I would like you to turn to

19 the second page.  It's entitled Rig Hardware

20 Assessment Definitions?

21      MR. JOHNSON:

22           I am going to object at this time

23 to lack of foundation.

24      MR. MATHEWS:

25           Foundation as to what?  I'm sorry.
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1      MR. JOHNSON:

2           As to whether he has ever seen

3 this document or is familiar with its

4 contents.

5      MR. MATHEWS:

6           The foundation was set when I

7 asked him if he had ever been informed of

8 types of events or incidents or equipment

9 that may cause a threat to the personnel

10 offshore.

11      MR. JOHNSON:

12           I don't think that's a foundation

13 as it relates to questioning him about this

14 particular document if he's never seen it

15 before.  I was also looking on Page 2 to the

16 preamble you gave to your last question

17 about when this occurred and by who prepared

18 it.  I don't see any reference to any date

19 on Page 2 of this document unless I've

20 missed it in my quick glance and review.

21      MR. MATHEWS:

22           I will have to explain this to

23 you.  But this is an Excel spreadsheet.  It

24 kind of goes -- like three pages go into

25 one.  If you look at the very last page
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1 there is a time stamp on the bottom that

2 says DEEPWATER HORIZON Assessment 01 through

3 02, April 20, '10.

4      MR. JOHNSON:

5           I see that on the last two pages.

6      MR. MATHEWS:

7           And my questions are going to be

8 directed to his role in HSE, not if he has

9 ever seen this document.  I just wanted to

10 see some questions posed to him from some

11 findings in this document.

12      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

13           I think it will be easier for the

14 witness to know what Mr. Mathews' area of

15 inquiry is if he can see that document in

16 front of him while he is asking the

17 question.  Okay, Mr. Mathews.

18 EXAMINATION BY MR. MATHEWS:

19      Q.   Earlier there was some testimony

20 and some questions concerning the five-year

21 recertification issue of the BOP stack.  Do

22 you recall that testimony, sir?

23      A.   I recall that it occurred.  I

24 don't really remember exactly what was said.

25      Q.   Fair enough.  I'm not going to get
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1 into the testimony.  But the five-year

2 certification was actually covered in this

3 audit performed by ModuSpec for Transocean.

4 And the five-year certification is actually

5 documented multiple times on Page 2 of the

6 document -- Page 3, excuse me.  Page 3.

7           And you see where it has A all the

8 way down?  Can you confirm that every one of

9 those As is associated with the five-year

10 certification of the BOP stack and/or its

11 components?

12      A.   I don't know what A means.

13      Q.   That's what I'm going to flip you

14 to right now.  If you go back to the second

15 page:  A stands for critical items that may

16 lead to loss of life, a serious injury or

17 environmental damage as a result of

18 inadequate use and/or failure of equipment;

19 is that correct, sir?

20      A.   That's what it says.

21      Q.   Was your office ever notified of

22 this threat?

23      A.   No, sir.

24      Q.   At any other times -- how long

25 have you been in that position, sir?
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1      A.   Since November 2009.

2      Q.   Have you ever been notified of any

3 BOP issues or any type of -- regardless if

4 it's BOP or not, in any Transocean audit if

5 there was ever a threat that's been

6 identified like this, have you ever been

7 notified to your office?

8      A.   I get notified of issues every

9 day, all the time, and I react to them at an

10 appropriate level.  So if something is

11 brought to my attention and it is an A, as

12 stated in this, I would react to it.

13      MR. MATHEWS:

14           Thank you.  I have no other

15 questions, sir.

16      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

17           Any other Board questions?

18 EXAMINATION BY MR. DYKES:

19      Q.   I have a couple.  Mr. Canducci,

20 are you familiar with the regulations

21 located at 33 CFR Subchapter N on OCS

22 activity.

23      A.   I have looked at them.  I can't go

24 any beyond that.

25      Q.   Do they apply to foreign flag



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 38

1 vessels, MODUs operating in the Gulf of

2 Mexico, to the best that you interpret them?

3      A.   I would assume that if you are

4 operating in the Gulf of Mexico you have to

5 follow --

6      Q.   As part of Subchapter N, there is

7 a requirement for the emergency evacuation

8 plan, and I believe it is Section 143 of

9 that rule.  And earlier I think Captain

10 Nguyen used this as an exhibit where he

11 talked about two different individuals being

12 named as the person in charge.  Do you

13 recall that?

14      A.   Right.  I do recall that.

15      Q.   To your knowledge, has Transocean

16 ever developed an emergency evacuation plan

17 in accordance with Subchapter N?

18      A.   We have an emergency response

19 manual.

20      Q.   You have an emergency response

21 plan?

22      A.   And we have a station bill that

23 establishes emergency response and

24 evacuation.

25      Q.   All right.  Subchapter N also
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1 requires that that document be submitted to

2 the Coast Guard for approval.  Do you know

3 that Transocean submitted that document?

4      A.   I do not know that.

5      Q.   Do you know that BP is also

6 required to submit an emergency evacuation

7 plan in accordance with Subchapter N to the

8 Coast Guard for approval?

9      A.   I did not know that.

10      Q.   So you are not aware that this

11 plan was actually submitted originally when

12 the Transocean MARIANAS was on location at

13 the Macondo 252 location?

14      A.   No, sir.

15      Q.   And that it was approved by the

16 Coast Guard?

17      A.   I'm not aware of that.

18      Q.   So you are not aware that when BP

19 amended the plan to cover the DEEPWATER

20 HORIZON that it was also submitted and

21 approved by the Coast Guard?

22      A.   I'm not aware of that.

23      MR. DYKES:

24           Thank you.

25      JUDGE ANDERSEN:
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1           Any other Board questions?

2           Marshall Islands?

3      MR. LINSIN:

4           Thank you, Your Honor.

5 EXAMINATION BY MR. LINSIN:

6      Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Canducci.  My

7 name is Greg Linsin.  I represent the

8 Republic of Marshall Islands, the flag state

9 for the DEEPWATER HORIZON.  I just have a

10 couple of questions, Mr. Canducci, that

11 hopefully will aid in rounding out the

12 picture concerning the interaction between

13 Transocean and the flag administration in

14 connection with ISM compliance.

15           You were asked some questions

16 earlier about a meeting that a Mr. Wong, the

17 CEO of Transocean, attended and I believe

18 Mr. Newman, the president and COO of the

19 company attended.  In addition to Jimmy

20 Moore or his replacement, Ian Hudson, and

21 yourself, are there other individuals within

22 Transocean that are charged with

23 responsibility for overseeing ISM compliance

24 aboard Transocean vessels?

25      A.   Yes, sir.
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1      Q.   You mentioned, I believe, that

2 each of the nine divisions of the company,

3 at least those that have operating vessels,

4 have a DPA designated for those vessels; is

5 that correct?

6      A.   Yes, sir.

7      Q.   In addition to those people, are

8 you familiar with an individual named Warren

9 Weaver and his responsibilities with regard

10 to ISM compliance?

11      A.   I do know Warren.  I don't know

12 specifically what his role is or what his

13 job description looks like, but he is the

14 regulatories manager the last I spoke to

15 him.

16      Q.   And do you know how often he

17 communicates with the personnel within the

18 flag administration regarding ISM

19 compliance-related issues?

20      A.   I believe he speaks to them

21 frequently would be the way I characterize

22 that.

23      Q.   And before we go on to other

24 individuals, does Transocean centralize

25 contact with the flag administration within
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1 any one individual's area of responsibility?

2 Is it the corporate DPA that is charged with

3 that responsibility?

4      A.   I don't believe that that's stated

5 anywhere, but that's generally the way it

6 plays out.

7      Q.   And that meaning, that in terms of

8 official communications between a flag

9 administration and Transocean, that those

10 are centralized through Mr. Moore's or

11 Mr. Hudson's office; is that correct?

12      A.   That's what I believe.  I believe

13 that when it's in the context of our

14 document of compliance, which is a

15 companywide document, I think the preference

16 is that there is a single point of contact

17 or a single group of people that they

18 contact and then the information and the

19 needs are expressed and disseminated

20 throughout the company as appropriate.

21      Q.   Additionally, are you familiar

22 with a Captain Stephen Walker and any duties

23 and responsibilities he may have with regard

24 to communication with the flag

25 administration on ISM compliance-related
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1 issues?

2      A.   Stephen is the North American

3 Division marine superintendent and all our

4 rig managers rely on him to guide them in

5 flag state matters and the expectation from

6 them and from himself is to do that.

7      Q.   And similarly, is it your

8 understanding that Captain Walker is

9 likewise in routine communication with

10 personnel within the flag administration

11 surrounding issues of ISM compliance?

12      A.   Yes, sir.  He is in frequent

13 communication with the flag state.

14      Q.   I'm going to telescope the rest of

15 this, but the very same questions with

16 regard to the additional individuals I will

17 name:  Captain John McDonald, Captain Joel

18 Vendalin (phonetic) and Josh Harrington.

19 Are you familiar with those individuals,

20 sir?

21      A.   I am, sir.

22      Q.   And is each of those individuals

23 also involved in ISM compliance issues and

24 regularly in communication with the flag

25 administration concerning those issues with
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1 respect to Transocean vessels?

2      A.   Yes, sir.  You have characterized

3 it properly.

4      Q.   I want to ask a question regarding

5 the audit process and let's start with an

6 ISM audit for a vessel.  And let us take one

7 of the vessels in the Gulf of Mexico.  Are

8 you personally involved in that audit

9 process of a vessel under your sphere of

10 responsibility?

11      A.   Well, you would have to define an

12 audit, whether it's an internal or an

13 external audit.

14      Q.   I'm talking about an external DNV

15 ISM audit.

16      A.   For the flag state?

17      Q.   Yes, sir.

18      A.   It's not specifically under my

19 auspices.  However, I do manage the PMAA

20 group and in that group we have a PMAA

21 manager and two lead auditors.  Because they

22 do our internal ISM auditing I am well aware

23 of what goes on.  And when an external audit

24 is commissioned by the captain or our marine

25 superintendent, I'm generally aware that
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1 that has occurred.

2           If it hasn't occurred, I don't

3 automatically get the alarm.  But certainly

4 if it goes to the level of the deep seas

5 one, I learn about it.  But it's not within

6 my PMAA group's directive to go and get that

7 fixed.

8      Q.   If there are nonconformities

9 identified in one of these external audits,

10 whose responsibility is it within Transocean

11 to follow up on those nonconformities and

12 insure that they are corrected?

13      A.   It specifically comes down on the

14 shoulders of the rig managers to figure out

15 what the plan will be to rectify any

16 nonconformance.

17      Q.   But did I understand you to

18 testify a moment ago that if there are

19 certain types of problems identified in

20 these audits that they do eventually -- that

21 they are eventually brought to your

22 attention?

23      A.   Yes, sir.

24      Q.   And what types of issues are

25 brought to your attention regarding those
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1 external vessel audits?

2      A.   If a rig is audited and has

3 non-compliance or observations and the rig

4 managers -- whether it's an asset issue or a

5 management system issue and the rig managers

6 are unable or unclear or need guidance on

7 how it's to be rectified, then they would

8 come to me and ask for either assistance or

9 guidance, or could you help me interpret the

10 rule.  And I would provide that to them.

11 And, of course, it goes to the -- from the

12 rig manager to the operations managers and

13 general managers and that group of people,

14 along with myself, meet every Monday,

15 Wednesday and Friday for standard -- three

16 times a week operations meeting and it would

17 come up at that point.  And if it was

18 unclear what was going to be done to rectify

19 some hypothetical situation, we would

20 formulate a plan there and we would decide

21 who needs to execute that plan.  So I would

22 learn about it in that manner.  And there

23 are other ways that I would learn about it

24 through conversations with the people that I

25 work with.
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1      Q.   Are there times, Mr. Canducci,

2 when you personally communicate with or

3 interact with personnel from the flag

4 administration?

5      A.   It has not been very frequent.  In

6 fact, I can't remember any time dealing with

7 the Marshall Islands.

8      Q.   Do you at any point, or have you

9 so far anyhow, have you interacted with any

10 of the DNV auditors directly?

11      A.   I interacted with Mike Close who

12 came to audit the North American Division

13 office here in August quite extensively.

14      Q.   You interacted with him in terms

15 of being interviewed in connection with that

16 audit; is that correct?

17      A.   That's correct.

18      Q.   But otherwise, you are not

19 responsible -- even though you are involved

20 with ISM compliance issues, you are not

21 involved with scheduling or overseeing the

22 process of an audit?

23      A.   No, I'm not.  That would have been

24 scheduled by Steve Walker, I believe.

25      Q.   Couple of just final questions.
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1 Similarly with respect to the DOC audits for

2 the company itself, the annual ISM audits,

3 do you have any direct role in those?

4      A.   I do not.

5      Q.   Have you at any point been advised

6 of the results of any of those annual VOC

7 audits in terms of issues that need

8 follow-up or concerns that had been raised?

9      A.   I have not.

10      Q.   Is there a system in place within

11 Transocean that would alert you to those

12 issues if they had arisen?

13      A.   The audit results are posted on

14 our Internet, so I would learn it from there

15 if it was, if it had become something that

16 was brought to my attention and I needed to

17 do something about it.

18      Q.   Lastly and perhaps most

19 importantly, are you aware that the

20 personnel from the flag administration are

21 in contact on a regular basis with

22 Transocean vessel masters and other field

23 personnel specifically in connection with

24 ISM-related issues?

25      A.   Yes.  I'm aware that that is a
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1 frequent contact and they have multiple

2 conversations about the ISM code and

3 executing and keeping abreast of their

4 requirements.

5      MR. LINSIN:

6           Thank you, Your Honor.  No further

7 questions.

8      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

9           Thank you.

10           Mr. Johnson, it's been our custom

11 to give you now, as well as at the end, a

12 chance to ask your client questions if you

13 would like to.  Then give Transocean the

14 same opportunity so the two of you will have

15 the opportunity to ask questions now, or if

16 you would like -- if you choose not to do

17 that, that's fine.  When everyone else has

18 wrapped up other than the Board then you

19 will have another chance to do it.  Would

20 you like to ask any questions now?

21      MR. JOHNSON:

22           If I may I'd reserve my time,

23 thank you.

24      CAPT. HIGGINS:

25           Okay.  Transocean?
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1      MR. KALLAM:

2           I will do the same, Your Honor,

3 I'll reserve until the end.

4      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

5           Douglas Brown?

6      COUNSEL REPRESENTING DOUGLAS BROWN:

7           No questions.

8      CAPT. HIGGINS:

9           BP?

10      MR. GODFREY:

11           Thank you, Your Honor, just a few.

12 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

13      Q.   Good afternoon, sir.  My name is

14 Rick Godfrey.  I represent BP.

15      A.   Good afternoon.

16      Q.   Since the explosion on April 20,

17 2010, are you aware of whether or not

18 Transocean has made any changes to its

19 Safety Management System?

20      A.   The manual and the Safety

21 Management System has been redesigned, and

22 this past weekend all the QHSE managers from

23 around the world, and all the division

24 general managers from around the world,

25 arrived in the Sugarland Marriott Hotel to
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1 discuss a draft copy of a revamped safety

2 management manual which affects the Safety

3 Management System and how we execute that

4 system.

5      Q.   What are the principal changes

6 which are contained in the draft between the

7 SMS system of Transocean prior to April 20

8 and that which was under consideration at

9 the Sugarland Hotel last weekend?

10      MR. KALLAM:

11           I just enter an objection at this

12 point.  I think this witness has testified

13 this process is ongoing and not finalized

14 and fluid at the moment.  I think it's

15 inappropriate especially in a public forum

16 to get into the development process at this

17 time.

18      MR. GODFREY:

19           May I respond to that objection?

20      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

21           Well, we are very interested in

22 forward-looking recommendations.  And the

23 knowledge that you have been able to gather,

24 maybe some from this casualty, maybe from

25 other matters, would be very helpful to the
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1 Board.  So it seems to me this is very

2 relevant.  Do you want to add any other?

3      MR. GODFREY:

4           That was my point, Your Honor.

5      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

6           I understand that concern, but

7 obviously the world needs the best

8 information as swiftly as possible, not only

9 to affect Transocean but maybe to help some

10 others as well.  So I'm going to overrule

11 the objection for that reason.

12           We understand that this isn't

13 necessarily the final product, although

14 speaking for myself, I would like to have

15 access to that, assuming that that's

16 finalized during the life of the Board.

17           So what are the main differences

18 that you are considering at this point in

19 time?

20      THE WITNESS:

21           Well, let me first point out that

22 I wasn't there.  They met between Friday and

23 Wednesday and I had to leave on Sunday.  So

24 there were three days that I was unable to

25 join them.  And the only thing that I saw
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1 was a review of the environmental management

2 manual and our management of change process

3 was being modified.  It was quite a

4 heated -- not heated.  It was an animated

5 discussion.

6      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

7           Spirited.

8      THE WITNESS:

9           Spirited discussion, that's a good

10 word.  And by no means is it a final deal.

11 But the process is in process.  So I can't

12 offer any nuggets of wisdom here.

13      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

14           Do you know when it's scheduled to

15 be completed?

16      THE WITNESS:

17           I don't know that there is --

18 certainly in as timely a manner as possible,

19 but I don't know that there is -- no one

20 told me the date.

21      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

22           Right.  But we think it's -- if

23 everyone is coming from around the world

24 now, we would assume that after this meeting

25 someone is going to sit down in the next
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1 month or two --

2      THE WITNESS:

3           Oh, I think it's going to take

4 longer than that, Your Honor.  I believe if

5 we get it in the second quarter of '11, we

6 will be --

7      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

8           Moving quickly.

9      THE WITNESS:

10           -- doing well.  I think we are

11 going to live with our current management

12 system.

13      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

14           Since he liked my response to the

15 objection, now he has me asking his

16 questions.  Back to you.  Thank you.

17      MR. GODFREY:

18           You are doing great, Your Honor.

19 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

20      Q.   I understand that you were not

21 there each and every day last weekend, but

22 as the ISM designated person for the North

23 American Division, and given that we just

24 had an explosion, sinking and the

25 unfortunate deaths and personal injuries on
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1 board the DEEPWATER HORIZON, were you not

2 involved in the drafting of the proposed

3 changes to the Safety Management System?

4      A.   Yes.

5      Q.   Fine.  Well, let's --

6      MR. KALLAM:

7           Let him finish.

8 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

9      Q.   I'm sorry, please continue.  Go

10 on.

11      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

12           What is the question?

13 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

14      Q.   What changes were you involved in

15 the drafting of?  Although you were not at

16 the meeting last weekend, what changes were

17 you involved in the drafting of the Safety

18 Management System in your position as the

19 ISM designated person for the North American

20 Division?

21      A.   The one that comes immediately to

22 mind is the associating lockout/tagout

23 system with a permit-to-work system.  That's

24 one change that I would like to see and I

25 have been told -- I have a representative
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1 there who stayed for the entire meeting, and

2 over the telephone I learned that my wishes

3 were embraced.

4      Q.   What specific changes are you

5 aware with respect to the management of

6 change draft that you referred to a few

7 minutes ago?

8      A.   I'm not in a position to be able

9 to tell you.

10      Q.   You haven't made --

11      A.   I don't know.

12      Q.   I'm sorry.  I have done that twice

13 and I apologize.  I will try not to speak

14 over you.

15      A.   I understand this is a

16 conversation here, so go ahead.

17      Q.   I shouldn't interrupt you.  I

18 apologize.  Do you have in your possession

19 or have ready access to the current draft

20 that's being considered?

21      A.   I do not.

22      Q.   Is the maintenance system of

23 Transocean part of the Safety Management

24 System?

25      A.   I don't believe it is.  I
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1 understand that there are maintenance

2 requirements in the ISM code, but -- and we

3 subscribe to the code certainly, but our

4 maintenance system is a system that is

5 managed as a function unto itself.

6      Q.   By the asset management group?

7      A.   Yes.

8      Q.   Does the asset management group of

9 Transocean follow the Safety Management

10 System of Transocean, or is it separate and

11 apart from that?

12      A.   Everybody in the company follows

13 the Safety Management System.

14      Q.   Have you been involved in any post

15 accident investigations conducted by

16 Transocean with respect to the explosion,

17 sinking, loss of life and personal injury of

18 the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

19      A.   No, sir.

20      Q.   Is there any ISM-designated

21 person, whether for the North American

22 Division or any other ISM-designated person

23 at any level within Transocean, who has been

24 involved in any post accident investigation

25 to determine the cause of the casualty?
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1      A.   I'm not aware of who has been

2 involved in the investigation.

3      Q.   But as far as you know, the

4 ISM-designated person for the North American

5 Division has had no role in determining what

6 caused or contributed to the casualty that

7 took place on April 20, 2010; is that

8 correct?

9      MR. JOHNSON:

10           Objection.  That's asked and

11 answered.

12      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

13           Well, you can verify it one more

14 time.  You have had no role in that

15 assessment?

16      THE WITNESS:

17           That's correct.

18 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

19      Q.   You testified with respect to some

20 answers to Captain Nguyen -- it seems like a

21 long time ago but it was actually around

22 10:00 this morning -- that the master's job

23 description has been changed.  Do you recall

24 that testimony?

25      A.   I do.
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1      Q.   On what date was the master's job

2 description changed, approximately?

3      A.   April 17, 2009, if I'm not

4 mistaken.

5      Q.   And was that changed for the

6 DEEPWATER HORIZON, or was that changed for

7 other vessels, if you know?

8      A.   That was the job description for

9 all masters.

10      Q.   You also testified this morning

11 that the master's authority was rewritten to

12 make it clear.  Do you recall that

13 testimony?

14      A.   I do.

15      Q.   And when was that rewritten

16 master's authority done?

17      A.   On a couple of occasions we have

18 walked through the changing of the field

19 operations manual.  I don't know exactly

20 when that occurred.  It's -- the new marine

21 compliance procedures manual was issued in

22 July.

23      Q.   Would that be July of the year

24 2010?

25      A.   I do believe that's correct.
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1      Q.   Was the new marine procedures

2 manual that was issued in July of 2010

3 issued as a result of the casualty that took

4 place on April 20, 2010, if you know?

5      MR. KALLAM:

6           Your Honor, in addition to the

7 objection I lodged earlier, I think this

8 whole line of questioning regarding events

9 that took place after the accident, although

10 very perhaps informative to the Board, is a

11 subsequent remedial measure perhaps that

12 would be objectionable and outside the realm

13 of any inquiry by this Board.

14      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

15           Obviously I assume there is other

16 forums in which the parties are engaged in

17 various discovery and that's not our primary

18 purpose.  You testified that you had no role

19 in the ensuing investigation.  Do you then

20 know whether or not any of these changes

21 were as a result of that?

22      THE WITNESS:

23           I think -- I believe that those

24 manuals will take such effort and

25 involvement from people, the captains
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1 offshore and the operations people that are

2 offshore, that they couldn't do it between

3 the time of the incident and the time it was

4 published, so I think it was something that

5 was already in the works.

6 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

7      Q.   In answer to questions posed by, I

8 believe, Mr. Mathews, I thought I heard you,

9 and please correct me if I'm wrong, but I

10 thought I heard you testify that on

11 April 21, 2010, the day after the explosion

12 but while the rig was still floating and

13 under fire, the DNV showed up at your

14 doorstep; is that right?

15      A.   I believe the document suggests

16 that they were in the Greenway Plaza office.

17      Q.   And did I understand you to

18 explain or tell Mr. Mathews that while the

19 rig was on fire, after there was an

20 explosion, after there was an emergency at

21 sea, the DNV nevertheless that very next day

22 passed and recertified the compliance with

23 the SMS system and the ISM code; is that

24 what you said?

25      MR. JOHNSON:
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1           Objection.  That's a

2 mischaracterization of his prior testimony.

3      MR. GODFREY:

4           Well, I asked him --

5      MR. JOHNSON:

6           He spoke of the date, Mr. Godfrey.

7 He did not give the rendition that you just

8 gave in your question.

9      MR. SCHONEKAS:

10           By its very nature the question is

11 repetitious.  Mr. Godfrey essentially is

12 asking to confirm what the witness has

13 already said.

14      MR. GODFREY:

15           Well, those objections are

16 inconsistent.  You can have one or the

17 other.  You can't have both, Your Honor.

18      MR. SCHONEKAS:

19           I like mine.

20      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

21           I'm going to sustain the objection

22 on the grounds that the certificate, clearly

23 the April 20, 2010, fell within the time

24 that that certificate was valid and so that

25 speaks for itself.  If counsel wants to ask
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1 any other questions, he is welcome to, but I

2 think the record is clear in that sense.

3 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

4      Q.   Well, I don't have the document at

5 hand, so let me ask you this, sir.  After

6 the explosion, did the DNV reissue or

7 revalidate the ISM certificate with respect

8 to the Safety Management System of

9 Transocean, if you know?

10      A.   We didn't renew any certificates.

11 But their review on April 20 and 21 in the

12 Greenway Plaza office did, was to confirm

13 that we have a Safety Management that is in

14 keeping with the code.  As a result of that

15 Safety Management System being in place and

16 keeping with the code, they renewed the

17 document of compliance.

18      Q.   And they renewed that document of

19 compliance after April 20 and at the time

20 that the rig was still burning and on fire

21 in the Gulf; is that correct?

22      MR. SCHONEKAS:

23           Asked and answered, third time.

24 We are doing another variation of it.

25      JUDGE ANDERSEN:
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1           I don't think we knew about any

2 renewal afterward.  That document that

3 Mr. Mathews referenced was issued well

4 before this.  So was there a renewal

5 immediately after April 20, if you know?

6      THE WITNESS:

7           I don't understand the question.

8      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

9           Mr. Godfrey asked whether or not

10 while -- after the casualty occurred but

11 while the DEEPWATER HORIZON was still afloat

12 if there was a renewal of the certification.

13           Was that your question?

14      MR. GODFREY:

15           Yes, sir.

16      MR. JOHNSON:

17           Judge, he answered in the

18 affirmative.

19      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

20           Yes.  Okay.  The answer --

21      MR. JOHNSON:

22           That was on the record to the

23 question asked by Mr. Mathews.

24      THE WITNESS:

25           Is he referring to the HORIZON
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1 certificate?

2      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

3           Ask him.  It's his question.

4 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

5      Q.   Well, let's break it down.

6      A.   You say certificate, and --

7      Q.   I don't have the benefit of the

8 certificate, sir.

9      MR. JOHNSON:

10           Mr. Godfrey, you are welcome to it

11 if that will help you.

12      CAPT. NGUYEN:

13           Let me interject real quick.

14      MR. GODFREY:

15           Please, Captain Nguyen.  I think

16 that that's your important one.  This is the

17 DNV document of compliance, so this is the

18 office, the North American Division

19 document.

20      MR. JOHNSON:

21           Excuse me, Captain.  This is the

22 corporate document that we have in front of

23 us, if that's the one you are referring to.

24      THE WITNESS:

25           The company gets the document of
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1 compliance.

2 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. NGUYEN:

3      Q.   I understand that.  But this is

4 for the company, right?  This is only one

5 document for the company?

6      A.   Correct.

7      Q.   Now, my question for you and then

8 I will move back out, is that the DNV was at

9 attendance to audit the company.  Was that

10 at the request of Transocean?

11      A.   It would have to have been.

12      Q.   There is two choices, right?

13      A.   Yes or no.

14      Q.   No.  It's not yes or no.

15      MR. KALLAM:

16           Can I enter an objection?

17      CAPT. NGUYEN:

18           Yes, sir.

19      MR. KALLAM:

20           You have the endorsement that

21 indicates that the window was from

22 October 25th to April 25th of that year to

23 get the endorsement.  There is a limited

24 period of time when the audit must take

25 place.  This was not a voluntary time period
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1 for Transocean to say:  Come in and audit

2 our rigs on the day of something happening.

3 There is a defined period and that's when it

4 took place.

5      CAPT. NGUYEN:

6           I don't know that.

7      MR. KALLAM:

8           I'm trying to clear the record up

9 to save time.

10      THE WITNESS:

11           In general the way these things go

12 is the person who is interacting with DNV

13 will call them, say:  Look we have this

14 window of execution here, will you come in

15 and assess our compliance with the

16 management system?

17           Okay, Transocean, we will be there

18 as soon as we can, but it doesn't look like

19 we have an opening until April 20, how is

20 that?  Can you make that work?

21           Yes, sir.  I will see you when you

22 get there.  That's about how it plays out.

23 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. NGUYEN:

24      Q.   I understand.  Was this request of

25 DNV, was it before the casualty or after the



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 68

1 casualty?  Because the date is 2010,

2 April 21.

3      A.   I wouldn't have an answer for

4 that.  I don't know.

5      Q.   So would you have the knowledge

6 whether this was a request by the company or

7 was it a directive from the flag state?

8 Which one?  Those are the two choices.

9      A.   I can't answer that.  I have no

10 knowledge of that.

11 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

12      Q.   Do you have knowledge as to

13 whether or not the DNV reissued the

14 certificate after the explosion and while

15 the rig was still on fire in the Gulf?

16      MR. JOHNSON:

17           Objection; asked and answered.

18      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

19           The answer is not clear in my mind

20 yet, so if you could repeat it once more

21 that would be great.  Did they?

22      THE WITNESS:

23           Complete the --

24 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

25      Q.   Did they --
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1      MR. JOHNSON:

2           Did they complete the audit and

3 issue the reissuance of the certificate of

4 compliance after the explosion while the rig

5 was still on fire in the Gulf?

6      MR. KALLAM:

7           I'm going to object.  The document

8 speaks for itself.  It's clearly taken --

9      MR. JOHNSON:

10           Well, then tell us what it says.

11      THE WITNESS:

12           It says on April 21 it was

13 endorsed.

14      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

15           We will take that to be a yes.

16 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

17      Q.   Thank you.  You were asked

18 questions by -- I always want to call him

19 Captain, but it's Commander Butts, about the

20 drillers chair being frozen up.  Do you

21 recall that?

22      A.   I do recall him mentioning it.

23      Q.   At any time before today, has

24 anyone ever referred to the driller's chair,

25 specifically driller's chair A in the
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1 drilling shack on board the DEEPWATER

2 HORIZON, as the chair which had the blue

3 screen of death?  Has anyone told you that

4 before?

5      A.   No, sir.

6      Q.   In your position as the

7 ISM-designated person from North American

8 Division, had you been made aware of the

9 reference or complaints about the drilling

10 chair A on board the DEEPWATER HORIZON

11 having some they call the blue screen of

12 depth, would that have caused you concern in

13 your position as the ISM designated person?

14      A.   I suppose it would have.

15      Q.   If you learned, in fact, that the

16 drilling chair's computer screen enabling

17 the driller to monitor what is taking place

18 down the hall had frozen up or locked down

19 or was inoperable, would that be an

20 observation or would that be a

21 nonconformity?

22      MR. KALLAM:

23           Same objection as earlier on this

24 whole line of questioning.

25      JUDGE ANDERSEN:
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1           If you have an opinion, you can

2 state it.

3      THE WITNESS:

4           I don't have an answer.

5 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

6      Q.   You testified that Jimmy Moore

7 recently left the company.  Do you recall

8 that?

9      A.   I do.

10      Q.   What precisely was Mr. Moore's

11 position within the company before he left?

12      A.   Director of QHSE.

13      Q.   And did he have a role in the ISM?

14      A.   He was the corporate ISM

15 designated person onshore.

16      Q.   He was senior to you?

17      A.   He was.

18      Q.   When did Mr. Moore leave?

19      A.   I'm not entirely sure exactly when

20 he left.

21      Q.   He left after April 20, did he

22 not?

23      A.   Oh, recently.  This month, I

24 think.

25      Q.   Do you know the circumstances
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1 under which Mr. Moore left?

2      A.   They were amiable.

3      Q.   That's what you have been told?

4      A.   I haven't been told anything.

5      Q.   So you don't know the

6 circumstances --

7      A.   I have been told that he was

8 retiring.

9      Q.   I see.  Now, you had before you

10 earlier today a number of these audits.  Was

11 this the first time you saw the BP audit

12 from September 2009?

13      A.   It was.

14      Q.   Had you ever been made aware at

15 any time prior to today that in the audit on

16 Page 2, the recommendation was made that

17 until a number of the issues were addressed

18 that the rig not be used?

19      A.   Are you asking was that brought to

20 my attention?

21      Q.   Yes, sir.

22      A.   No, it was not.

23      Q.   Would you consider recommendations

24 that the rig not be used for drilling

25 operations until items are addressed, would
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1 you consider that an observation or a

2 nonconforming event?

3      A.   It sounds like an instruction from

4 the operator to me.

5      Q.   With respect to the Lloyd's

6 Register and the ModuSpec audit, had you

7 seen those prior to today?

8      A.   No, sir.  I had seen the Lloyd's

9 Register report.  I have not seen the

10 ModuSpec report prior to today.

11      Q.   So of the BP audit, the ModuSpec

12 audit and the Lloyd's Register, the only one

13 of those three documents you have seen prior

14 to today was the Lloyd's Register; is that

15 correct?

16      A.   That's correct.

17      Q.   And when did you see the Lloyd's

18 Register?  At or about the time that's it

19 issued or recently, prior to this appearance

20 today?

21      A.   No.  When it was first -- when we

22 first received it, I got a copy.

23      Q.   You are the person designated with

24 the responsibility for insuring compliance

25 with the ISM code for the North American
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1 Division of Transocean, are you not?

2      A.   I am.

3      Q.   Can you explain how it is that you

4 are to assure compliance for the 14 rigs or

5 even just the DEEPWATER HORIZON in the North

6 American Division of Transocean if audits

7 reflecting issues are never brought to your

8 attention?  Do you know how that works?

9      A.   If there is an audit that's

10 conducted on any one of our rigs, the first

11 point of contact with both good and bad

12 comments are the rig managers.  If there is

13 something outside of their abilities or they

14 need some sort of resource in addition to

15 their own resources, they would come to me.

16      Q.   But how was the information about

17 the status of compliance with the Safety

18 Management System and the ISM code that is

19 determined in rig audits supposed to get to

20 you if no one sends you the audits?

21      MR. KALLAM:

22           Your Honor, object to this line of

23 questioning.  He's already testified in

24 detail how the Safety Management System of

25 the company deals with rig audits,
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1 maintenance and the interaction of the

2 safety management department.

3      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

4           Well, he is testifying that he is

5 relying on apparently the people who

6 originally get them to bring problems to him

7 if they occur.  And Mr. Godfrey and maybe

8 the Board would have a question, it might be

9 a better system if you got copies of the

10 audits yourself so you could make sure that

11 the areas you are focused on are attended to

12 and you would have an independent chance to

13 follow up.  But he is not getting the copies

14 directly so that's an item to consider for

15 the future.  Please proceed.

16      MR. GODFREY:

17           Thank you.

18 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

19      Q.   Can you answer the question?

20      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

21           I don't think he needs to

22 speculate.  Is there anything I said that

23 was incorrect?

24      THE WITNESS:

25           No.
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1      MR. GODFREY:

2           Fair enough.

3 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

4      Q.   Do you have before you still the

5 materials that Captain Nguyen handed out

6 earlier?

7      A.   We do.

8      Q.   The notebook?  I'm going to end

9 with some questions about the well

10 operations group advisory, operations

11 advisory at Tabs 21 and 22 just for your

12 reference.

13           Prior to today, had you heard

14 about the Shell incident in the North Sea

15 that took place on December 23, 2009?

16      A.   No, sir.

17      Q.   You hadn't heard about that at all

18 prior to today?

19      MR. JOHNSON:

20           Objection; argumentative.

21      MR. GODFREY:

22           It's not argumentative.

23      MR. JOHNSON:

24           Objection; asked and answered.

25      JUDGE ANDERSEN:
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1           Sustained.  Next question.

2 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

3      Q.   Fair enough.  Turn to Tab 21.

4      A.   We're there.

5      Q.   Do you see in the upper right-hand

6 corner, do you see that, sir?

7      A.   I do.

8      Q.   It says:  HQSOPS Advisory 09.  Do

9 you see that?

10      A.   No.  We don't see that.

11      CAPT. NGUYEN:

12           I think you are talking about

13 Tab 20.

14      MR. GODFREY:

15           May I approach the witness to see

16 what we have?

17      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

18           Sure.

19 EXAMINATION BY MR. GODFREY:

20      Q.   Let's look at Tab 20, then, in

21 your book.  Do you see the upper right-hand

22 corner where it says:  HQSOPS ADD 09?

23      A.   I do see that.

24      Q.   Does that mean headquarters?

25      A.   That means it's an operations
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1 advisory in the year 2009 that came out of

2 the headquarters group.

3      Q.   That would be systemwide, right?

4      A.   That would be systemwide.

5      Q.   Is the date of this April 5, 2010?

6      A.   Yes, sir.

7      Q.   Now, in your position as the

8 ISM-designated person, if there is an

9 incident like the one that you have heard

10 vague reference to in the North Sea and the

11 loss of well control, in the ordinary course

12 of your business that doesn't come to your

13 attention?

14      A.   No.

15      Q.   Do well control incidents come to

16 your attention, generally speaking, in your

17 position as ISM-designated representative in

18 the North American Division?

19      A.   No, sir.

20      Q.   If a well control event resulted

21 from a lapse in the Safety Management

22 System, would that come to your attention in

23 your designated position as the

24 ISM-designated person?

25      A.   I don't know.
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1      MR. GODFREY:

2           I have no further questions.

3 Thank you.

4      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

5           We have Steve Bertone.

6      LCDR. BUTTS:

7           Could I just follow along with

8 that?

9 EXAMINATION BY LCDR. BUTTS:

10      Q.   I think that advisory went on to

11 say that the well control manuals need to be

12 updated at some point in time.  So as the

13 administrator of those safety management

14 volumes, wouldn't that ultimately come to

15 you for implementation into the new control

16 manual for the industrial crew to have

17 procedures in place?

18      A.   Well, the well control manual,

19 which is now going to be referred to as

20 the -- it's always been called the well

21 control handbook.  We refer to it as the

22 well control manual.  But it's truly -- its

23 title is -- its nature is a handbook, which

24 gives our people guidance on how to manage

25 well control.
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1      Q.   Sure.

2      A.   I'm not entirely sure that it's

3 going to be rewritten.  I have heard tell

4 that it is.  I don't know anything about it,

5 but that's handled through our well

6 operations group and it has a distinct line

7 in the company management system document

8 stackup, if you know what I mean.  So it

9 doesn't come through to me.

10           We don't recognize well control as

11 a safety issue.  Well control is something

12 that we do every day, every day that we are

13 out there on every rig that's on board.  We

14 control wells that we are actively drilling.

15 Well control is not an alarming thing.  The

16 loss of well control is certainly of concern

17 but it's not an emergency.  It's just

18 something that has to be dealt with and it

19 has to be dealt with frequently.

20      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

21           If as a result of a loss of well

22 control or a well control incident somebody

23 were injured or killed, would that be

24 brought to your attention?

25      THE WITNESS:
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1           Certainly.  Incident that has harm

2 to person, harm to the environment,

3 automatically by design comes to me.

4      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

5           So if an incident had that

6 potential but it were contained without

7 property or personal harm, it would not as a

8 matter of course be reported to you?

9      THE WITNESS:

10           I don't get well control events

11 specifically --

12      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

13           Unless something bad happens?

14      THE WITNESS:

15           -- channeled through my group.  I

16 do not.

17      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

18           Okay.  We have Halliburton.

19      CAPT. NGUYEN:

20           Let me follow up real quick here

21 and then you can ask.

22 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. NGUYEN:

23      Q.   Your statement about well control

24 is not a safety issue and it's not an

25 emergency, is that your view or is that
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1 Transocean policy?

2      A.   I just don't get -- I'm not

3 speaking for Transocean when I say that.  I

4 don't think that they have ever looked at

5 well control as a safety event.  Because if

6 we lose well control, certainly the worst

7 things can happen as we've found out.  We

8 don't look at stability as though it's an

9 emergency safety issue, but the loss of

10 stability is equally a problem but we don't

11 run that up through my desk either.  So

12 that's how it plays out.  I just don't get

13 automatically told about a well control

14 event.

15      Q.   You don't get that, but well

16 control --

17      A.   Is very important.

18      Q.   It's not -- but your statement was

19 that it was not a safety issue, it's not an

20 emergency for you, or is that more

21 Transocean's?  I'm just trying to clarify

22 and if you can explain to me.

23      A.   I don't think Transocean has ever

24 stated their position on that.  I think I

25 was talking for myself.
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1      CAPT. NGUYEN:

2           Okay, sir, thank you.

3      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

4           Okay.  Mike Williams?

5      MR. STERBCOW:

6           Thank you, Your Honor.  Paul

7 Sterbcow, representing Mike Williams, one of

8 the hands on the rig.  I just have one

9 question, and I mean that.

10 EXAMINATION BY MR. STERBCOW:

11      Q.   Given what you have heard post

12 mortem now, do you feel like you can

13 adequately do the job that you have been

14 hired and trained and do the best of your

15 ability without getting more information

16 about all these issues and all these

17 problems that you have been questioned about

18 today?  Can you do your job until and unless

19 you start getting the information we have

20 discussed?

21      A.   Let me try and tell you what I

22 think now that I have been through this.  I

23 have always tried to execute my job in a

24 professional manner and I always try to

25 improve both myself and my group's
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1 performance.  Obviously, with this exercise

2 that we have been through today, I will

3 heighten my awareness and heighten my

4 group's awareness on the need for added

5 information.  I don't believe that I have

6 changed my position on well control or

7 stability or any of those issues.  So to the

8 extent that this answers your question, I

9 will continue to strive to improve every day

10 I'm on the job.

11      MR. STERBCOW:

12           Thank you.  I appreciate it.

13      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

14           He was debating -- what I think he

15 is saying is that as Mr. Mathews memorably

16 said yesterday, we know that none of the

17 companies here are selling barrels of

18 safety, which means anybody who is involved

19 in the safety business, as a number of us

20 have been for decades, really, realize that

21 sometimes we have to be assertive because no

22 one is making extra money because of what we

23 are doing and we know this is causing

24 tension.  Regardless of anything else,

25 insofar as you have that role, I would just
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1 urge you to be assertive and make sure that

2 people know if you think you need additional

3 things.

4           Cameron?

5      COUNSEL REPRESENTING CAMERON:

6           No questions, Your Honor.

7      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

8           M-I SWACO?

9      COUNSEL REPRESENTING M-I SWACO:

10           No questions, Your Honor.

11      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

12           Weatherford?

13      COUNSEL REPRESENTING WEATHERFORD:

14           No questions.

15      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

16           Anadarko MOEX?

17      COUNSEL REPRESENTING ANADARKO MOEX:

18           No questions.

19      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

20           No questions?

21      COUNSEL REPRESENTING ANADARKO MOEX:

22           No questions.

23      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

24           Dril-Quip?

25      COUNSEL REPRESENTING DRIL-QUIP:



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 86

1           No questions.

2      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

3           Jimmy Harrell?

4      COUNSEL REPRESENTING MR. HARRELL:

5           No questions.

6      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

7           Curt Kuchta?

8      MR. SCHONEKAS:

9           Very brief, Judge.

10 EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHONEKAS:

11      Q.   How are you, Mr. Canducci?

12      A.   I'm well.  How are you?

13      Q.   Good.  We met this morning.  I

14 represent Captain Kuchta.

15           Sir, Mr. Godfrey had asked you

16 some questions about issues on the audit, do

17 you recall those, for the DEEPWATER HORIZON,

18 as a general topic?

19      A.   Yes.  I sure do.

20      Q.   Are you aware, sir, that BP has a

21 right to audit the condition of this rig?

22      A.   Of course.

23      Q.   And, in fact, they exercised that

24 right in September prior to this accident;

25 is that right?
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1      A.   I do believe they did.

2      Q.   And, in fact, they found some

3 things that needed to be corrected and they

4 insisted that those be corrected; is that

5 correct?

6      A.   That's what I have been led to

7 believe.

8      Q.   And, in fact, if they had any --

9      MR. GODFREY:

10           Objection.  The witness is simply

11 saying that's what he is led to believe.  I

12 have no objection --

13      MR. SCHONEKAS:

14           I'm sorry.  I can't hear you, sir.

15      MR. GODFREY:

16           Since the witness said he never

17 saw it before today, you are just asking him

18 to agree that he's heard something today.

19 That's not adding to the process and it's

20 simply not appropriate.  It's lack of

21 foundation.

22      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

23           Well, I took that answer to mean

24 you didn't have independent awareness of

25 that until today; is that correct?
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1      MR. SCHONEKAS:

2           Let me follow up.

3 EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHONEKAS:

4      Q.   Sir, you know, do you not, based

5 upon all of your dealings with all of these

6 vessels over the years, that a client and

7 customer like BP has certain rights

8 concerning the condition of the vessels that

9 you provide?

10      A.   I don't know that I would call

11 them rights.  I think there are terms

12 negotiated in a contract.

13      Q.   Fair enough.  And those terms

14 include the right to audit the condition of

15 your vessel, does it not?

16      MR. GODFREY:

17           Objection; lack of foundation as

18 to this witness.

19      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

20           He asked if he was aware that

21 people in BP's position had acquired

22 contractual rights.  And now the question

23 is:  Are you aware that that includes the

24 right to audit a vessel?

25      THE WITNESS:
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1           Yes, sir.

2 EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHONEKAS:

3      Q.   And, in fact, sir, at no time

4 prior to this incident, or in the months

5 before this incident, at no time did BP say:

6 That rig is in poor condition, or we don't

7 want to use it; is that right, sir?

8      MR. GODFREY:

9           Objection; lack of foundation in

10 light of his prior testimony.

11 EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHONEKAS:

12      Q.   Is that right, sir?

13      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

14           If you are aware of anything you

15 can testify.

16      THE WITNESS:

17           I'm not aware that they have ever

18 done that.

19 EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHONEKAS:

20      Q.   In fact, if you had had a rig

21 refused by BP, particularly the DEEPWATER

22 HORIZON, you would have heard about that; is

23 that right, sir?

24      A.   Immediately.

25      Q.   And that's because it was the
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1 jewel of the fleet; is that right, sir?

2      A.   Yes, sir.

3      Q.   All right, sir.  Now, let's talk

4 about this issue of confusion.  It has been

5 suggested that there is some confusion about

6 who was in control or who should be in

7 control depending upon which of these many

8 manuals and documents that you look at.  Do

9 you recall all those questions?

10      A.   Yes, sir.

11      Q.   Let's talk about what really

12 happened out there, sir, and whether there

13 was confusion.  I know you weren't there,

14 but I'm going to read, ala Captain Nguyen,

15 some testimony to you and you tell me

16 whether or not this illustrates whether

17 there was confusion out there on April 20,

18 2010.

19           This was from Mr. Sims'

20 deposition, the BP executive.  By

21 Mr. Linsin:  Did you hear people giving

22 direction to other people during that time?

23           Answer:  The captain was, in my

24 opinion, doing the directing.  What

25 directing was going on was being done by the
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1 captain and --

2           Question:  And this was after or

3 shortly after you sensed this first intense

4 vibration or first explosion; is that

5 correct?

6           Answer:  That, yes, started at

7 that point.

8           Sir, does that testimony indicate

9 to you whether there was any confusion on

10 the part of Mr. Sims as to who was in

11 control in the situation?

12      A.   No.  It sounded as though whoever

13 you were quoting understood who was issuing

14 direction.

15      Q.   All right, sir.  Let's look at

16 Mr. O'Bryan's testimony.  He is another BP

17 executive who had the mischance of being out

18 there that evening.  This is at Page 309

19 starting at line 14 by me.

20           Question:  Do you recall that the

21 captain give the order to abandon ship,

22 correct?

23           Answer:  Yes.  As David and I were

24 heading out the door, I remember being --

25 him saying that, yes.
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1           And you also, I believe, testified

2 that you recall the captain barking

3 instructions or giving orders up on the

4 bridge; is that right?

5           No.  I didn't testify he was

6 giving orders.

7           Question:  I'm sorry, that he was

8 in control?

9           Yes.

10           I can ask you your question again.

11 You had the clear impression, question, that

12 the captain was in control?

13           Answer:  At the bridge, yes.

14           Sir, does that indicate to you

15 that there was any question out there that

16 night, based on this testimony, as to who

17 was in control?

18      A.   No.  The way you read it and the

19 way it comes across, that corroborates the

20 first commentary that they both understood

21 that the captain was in control.

22      Q.   Let's look at Mr. Meinhart's

23 testimony, who was the motorman that night,

24 and see whether or not this suggests to you

25 that there was any confusion as to who was



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 93

1 in control.  This is on May 29, Page 47,

2 line ten, by the astute Mr. Gordon.

3           Question:  Can you describe the

4 captain as far as his demeanor at that time?

5           Answer:  My opinion of the

6 captain's demeanor is that he was very

7 direct and organized and getting information

8 from crew.  That they were in different

9 parts of the vessel to assess the damage of

10 the vessel and then directing people as what

11 needed to be done.

12           Sir, does that suggest to you as

13 to who was in charge out there that night?

14      A.   It leads to me believe that the

15 captain was in control and in charge.

16      Q.   All right.  Notwithstanding the

17 parsing over the particular verbiage of each

18 of these subparts and amendments and all of

19 these things, do you have any impression or

20 any doubt as to who was in charge out there

21 that night?

22      A.   I do not.

23      MR. SCHONEKAS:

24           Thank you, sir.  That's all I

25 have.
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1      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

2           Thanks.  I appreciate the

3 validation of my permitting the captain to

4 use partial transcripts earlier today, so

5 now we have a little from each side and

6 that's the way it works sometimes.

7           Okay.  Patrick O'Bryan?

8           Robert Kaluza?

9      COUNSEL REPRESENTING MR. KALUZA:

10           No questions.

11      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

12           Would Transocean or Mr. Johnson

13 like to ask any follow-up questions?

14      MR. JOHNSON:

15           No, thank you, Judge.

16      MR. KALLAM:

17           Transocean has no questions.

18      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

19           Any other questions from the

20 Board?

21      CAPT. HIGGINS:

22           Yes, sir.

23 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

24      Q.   Sir, besides Section 4 and the

25 description of the designated person there,
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1 does Transocean have any other job

2 description of your duties as the designated

3 person with the specific responsibilities

4 required of your position?

5      A.   I have a job description, yes,

6 sir.

7      Q.   Could you provide that to the

8 Board, please?

9      A.   Yes, sir.

10      Q.   Do other employees at Transocean

11 have access to your job description so that

12 they know what you are responsible for?

13      A.   We maintain job descriptions on

14 the Internet.  Basically the repository is

15 called Edocs in our intranet.

16      Q.   So anyone in Transocean could go

17 to this repository --

18      A.   Not anyone.  People with log-on

19 rights.  It's somewhat restricted, but

20 certainly thousands of people have access to

21 it.

22      Q.   Sir, are you familiar with a

23 Mr. Mark Canada?

24      A.   I know Mark.  We have worked

25 together a long time ago.  I hadn't seen him
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1 in years, in a long, long time.

2      Q.   Do you know in what position he

3 served?

4      A.   I want to say quality manager, I

5 think is what his title was.  I'm not

6 entirely sure, to be honest with you.

7      Q.   Do you know when and why he left?

8      A.   No.  I do not.

9      Q.   Sir, you testified the authority

10 of the master changed on or about 17 April,

11 2010.  Could you describe the substance of

12 that change?

13      MR. JOHNSON:

14           I'm going to object.  That's a

15 mischaracterization of his testimony,

16 Captain.

17 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

18      Q.   Sir, would you explain what

19 changes were made to the master's

20 description of authority on or about 17

21 April, 2010?

22      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

23           2009 it was.

24      MR. JOHNSON:

25           It was 2009.
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1      CAPT. HIGGINS:

2           Thank you, sir.

3      THE WITNESS:

4           Well, if you recall, the comment

5 from the ISM audit said we weren't quite

6 categorically -- we weren't quite clear

7 enough on our statement, so the change was

8 to clear that up, so the expression --

9      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

10           Of the captain's leadership was

11 more clear?

12      THE WITNESS:

13           That's right.  And it reflected

14 more clearly and more closely the language

15 in the code.  It basically gives him

16 ultimate authority, clear overriding

17 authority.

18 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

19      Q.   So it brought the description more

20 in compliance with the ISM code, sir?

21      A.   Yes.

22      Q.   Are you familiar with the guidance

23 on qualifications, training and experience

24 necessary per the IMO with regard to your

25 position?



USCG/BOEM Board of Investigation (Re: Deepwater Horizon) The Joint United States Coast Guard/Bureau of Ocean Energy Management Investigation

New Orleans * Baton Rouge * Shreveport
PROFESSIONAL SHORTHAND REPORTERS, INC (800) 536-5255 (504) 529-5255

Page 98

1      A.   I have read it.

2      Q.   So in your view has Transocean

3 followed this guidance or not?

4      A.   I believe they have.

5      Q.   Are you familiar with the IMO

6 guidance with regard to reporting near-miss

7 situations?

8      A.   I can't quote it off the top of my

9 head.

10      Q.   Have you had the opportunity to

11 review that guidance, sir?

12      A.   I have read that whole document at

13 one time or another on a number of

14 occasions, but I don't recall it

15 specifically as we sit here.

16      Q.   Would you consider a well control

17 event to be a hazardous occurrence in a

18 near-miss situation?

19      A.   No, I would not.

20      Q.   So you would not consider a well

21 control event to be a near-miss, hazardous

22 occurrence; is that correct, sir?

23      A.   I don't think it's a near miss.  I

24 don't think it satisfies that.  It certainly

25 is a point of heightened concern for our
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1 drill crew and it's something that they

2 react to immediately and decisively.  But we

3 are designed and set up to do just that,

4 because that's what we do for a living.

5      MR. DYKES:

6           Captain, if you would, kind of

7 define well control event.  There are

8 multiple different types of well control

9 event.  Huge number.  Are you talking about

10 a total loss of well control or are you

11 talking about sticking pipe, or --

12 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. HIGGINS:

13      Q.   Something like taking a kick and a

14 near loss of well control, something similar

15 to what had prompted the well operations

16 group advisory from -- that we reviewed

17 earlier.

18      A.   I never really got a chance to

19 really read what the event was, so I don't

20 know really what happened.

21      Q.   The operative quote is:  Do not be

22 complacent because the reservoir has been

23 isolated and tested.  Remain focused on well

24 control and good well control procedures.

25           It would seem that that would be a
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1 significant safety concern to those on board

2 a rig.

3      A.   Well, sure, it is.  They talked

4 about -- I don't know what is in the body of

5 the text, but the title led me to believe

6 that there was a mechanical failure of a

7 mechanical barrier.  That would be of

8 concern.  It wouldn't necessarily be

9 dangerous.  It would be something that would

10 have to be -- couldn't be allowed to

11 deteriorate further, but it would have to be

12 reacted to and turned around.  A huge

13 amount -- pardon me, go ahead.

14      Q.   Sir, my questions focus on what

15 the safety reporting requirements would be

16 with regard to these types of events.  Would

17 there be any?

18      A.   There would be, but it wouldn't be

19 through my umbrella or sphere of influence.

20 It wouldn't necessarily be through my

21 sphere.

22      Q.   What sphere would it fall within,

23 sir?

24      A.   The operations group, the

25 operations performance group, the people
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1 that run the drilling rig itself, and the

2 subsea equipment people would learn about it

3 if it were a subsea failure or something

4 like that.

5      Q.   So these types of events would be

6 captured in operations reporting but not in

7 safety reporting?

8      A.   We have an operations event report

9 that goes through the channel, and it's

10 focused and put -- and it lands on the work

11 bench or the desk of the people that need to

12 see it and need to react to it.  And I'm

13 just not in that loop or in that chain of

14 command.  But it's not like it's kept from

15 me.  I can go in and look up operations

16 event reports if I choose to, but it's not

17 automatically funneled through my group.

18      CAPT. HIGGINS:

19           Thank you, sir.

20      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

21           Any other Board questions?

22 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. NGUYEN:

23      Q.   Yes, a couple of questions,

24 Mr. Canducci, regarding the change in the

25 master's authority?
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1      A.   Yes, sir.

2      Q.   On April 17, 2009, sir, was that

3 simply making correction in manual to

4 include the verbiage, or was it an actual

5 change that put the captain or the master in

6 command of the vessel in all those

7 operation?

8      A.   No.  I thought I cleared that up a

9 long time ago.  We are admonished for not

10 stating it clearly enough.  They asked us to

11 state it more clearly and that's what we

12 did.  That was the first step.

13           The second step was that change in

14 manuals and the language that came out in

15 that manual is verbatim with quotes of what

16 it says in this book.  So we cleared up that

17 line item, that finding, that observation

18 that they had in the audit.

19           The master's authority has never

20 been in question, or did that change his

21 authority.  He's always been -- he's always

22 had overriding authority.  There is an

23 industrial function on every one of our rigs

24 that needs to go on every day.  And the guy

25 who runs that is the offshore installation
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1 manager.  But when it comes to safety of

2 people, vessel and the environment, the

3 captain is the man and always has been.

4      Q.   So it's no different than the

5 chief engineer in charge of the maintenance

6 and operation of machinery, but he still

7 answers to the master?

8      A.   Absolutely.

9      Q.   Likewise, the OIM may be in charge

10 of the drilling operation, but he answers to

11 the master; is that your understanding, sir?

12      A.   That's correct.

13      Q.   So the master is in command of

14 that vessel in all modes at all times; is

15 that correct?

16      MR. SCHONEKAS:

17           I object to the form of the

18 question, all modes.  I'm not sure I

19 understand the question, all modes.

20 EXAMINATION BY CAPT. NGUYEN:

21      Q.   All modes would be underway, not

22 underway, latched on, all those modes.

23 Whichever modes the vessel is in, he would

24 be in command of that vessel?

25      MR. SCHONEKAS:
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1           At what time, Captain Nguyen?

2      CAPT. NGUYEN:

3           At all times.

4      MR. SCHONEKAS:

5           What date is what I'm referring

6 to?

7      CAPT. NGUYEN:

8           All dates.  Any day you were on

9 board a vessel.

10      MR. SCHONEKAS:

11           I am going to object to the form

12 of the question.

13      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

14           If you have an answer, you can

15 give it.

16      THE WITNESS:

17           The master has overriding

18 authority, especially with issues regarding

19 the safety of the people, the vessel and the

20 environment.

21      CAPT. NGUYEN:

22           Yes, sir.  I understand.  Thank

23 you, sir.

24      JUDGE ANDERSEN:

25           Any other questions?
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1           We know that -- we will all find

2 out when the BOP examination is final.  And

3 I think the Board would plan to meet, say,

4 two and a half to five weeks thereafter and

5 we will be in touch with you.  Thank you

6 very much.

7      CAPT. NGUYEN:

8           If the Board needs you to come

9 back, would you make yourself available?

10      THE WITNESS:

11           Yes.

12      CAPT. NGUYEN:

13           Happy holidays.

14

15    (Whereupon, the Proceeding was

16           concluded at 3:30 p.m.)

17

18                *     *     *

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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